
 

 
 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Galvin (Chair), Flinders (Vice-Chair), 

Shepherd, Cannon, Craghill, Crawshaw, Dew, Fenton, 
Gillies, Hunter and Mercer 
 

Date: Thursday, 10 January 2019 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West 
Offices (F045) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
 Sub-Committee Site Visit Schedule 
  The mini-bus for the sub-committee will leave from Memorial 

Gardens at 10.00am on Wednesday 9 January 2019. 
 

1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone 
who wishes to register or requires further information is 
requested to contact the Democracy Officers on the contact 
details listed at the foot of this agenda. The deadline for 
registering is at 5.00pm on Wednesday 9 January 2019. 
 



 

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission.  The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts  or, if sound 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officers (whose contact details 
are at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
 

3. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning applications:  

 
a) Windsor House, 22 Ascot Way, York, YO24 

4QZ [18/02177/FUL]   
(Pages 3 - 10) 

 Erection of sub-station and associated parking. [Westfield]  
[Site visit] 
 

b) The Limefields, Scoreby Lane, Scoreby, 
York, YO41 1NR [18/02103/FUL] 

(Pages 11 - 26) 

 Conversion of former agricultural building to a dwelling. 
[Osbaldwick And Derwent] [Site visit] 
 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972. 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

Democracy Officer: 
Chris Elliott 
Contact details:  

 Telephone – (01904) 553631 

 Email - Christopher.elliott@york.gov.uk  
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AREA PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE  
 

SITE VISITS 

Wednesday 9 January 2019 
 

The mini-bus for Members of the sub-committee will leave from 
Memorial Gardens at 10.00 

 

TIME 

(Approx) 

 

SITE ITEM 

10.30 The Limefields Scoreby Lane Scoreby  

11.20 Windsor House  22 Ascot Way  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 1 Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 1 of 6 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 10 January 2019 Ward: Westfield 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: No Parish 

 
Reference: 18/02177/FUL 
Application at: Windsor House 22 Ascot Way York YO24 4QZ  
For: Erection of sub-station and associated parking 
By: Mr Stephen King 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 10 December 2018 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 Windsor House comprises a two storey brick built former elderly person's care 
home lying to the west of Hob Moor. In December 2018 planning permission was 
granted for the erection of a part single storey part two storey centre for disabled 
children and their families following the demolition of existing care home (Ref: 
18/01467/GRG). Planning permission is now sought for the erection of a brick built 
electricity sub-station with associated parking in order to service the Centre of 
Excellence proposal. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Publication Draft Local Plan 2018  
 
D1 Place making 
 
HW7 Healthy Places 
 
2.2  Development Control Local Plan (2005)    
  
CYGP1 
Design 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Public Protection:- 
 
3.1 Raise no objection in principle to the proposal but wish to see a noise 
assessment undertaken at the site boundary on completion of the proposed works 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3a



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 2 of 6 

to demonstrate that the noise level from the substation does not increase 
background noise levels across all frequencies. 
 
EXTERNAL:- 
 
Ainsty(2008) Internal Drainage Board:- 
 
3.2 Raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
Publicity/Neighbour Notification:- 
 
3.3 Two responses have been received raising the following issues: 
 

- The proposal would result in a narrow dark access to the rear of Hob Moor 
School, increasing the risk for children 

- Potential for increasing anti-social behaviour. The flat roof of the substation 
could be used to access the roof of the adjacent garages and could result in 
criminal damage to the substation itself 

-  The proposal for the substation should have been an integral part of the 
application for the redevelopment of the site. Both applications should now be 
subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment  

 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
- Impact on the visual amenity of the wider street scene; 
- Impact on anti-social behaviour in the locality; 
- need for an Environmental Impact Assessment. 
 
LOCAL PLAN 
 
4.2 The Development Control Local Plan was approved for development 
management purposes in April 2005 (DCLP). Whilst the DCLP does not form part of 
the statutory development plan, its policies are considered to be capable of being 
material considerations in the determination of planning applications where policies 
relevant to the application are consistent with those in the NPPF as revised in July 
2018, although the weight that can be afforded to them is very limited.   
 
4.3 The Publication Draft Local Plan ('2018 Draft Plan') was submitted for 
examination on 25 May 2018. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF as 
revised in July 2018, the relevant 2018 Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight 
according to: 
 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 3 of 6 

-  The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 
-    The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and  
-    The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional 
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be 
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).   
 
The evidence base underpinning the 2018 Draft Plan is capable of being a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. 
 
4.4 The revised National Planning Policy Framework was published on 24 July 
2018 (NPPF) and its planning policies are material to the determination of planning 
applications. It is against the NPPF (as revised) and the saved RSS policies relating 
to the general extent of the York Green Belt that this proposal should principally be 
assessed. 
 
IMPACT ON THE VISUAL AMENITY OF THE WIDER STREET SCENE 
 
4.5 Central Government guidance as outlined in paragraph 127(c) of the NPPF 
indicates that planning decisions should ensure that new developments are visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate landscaping. 
Policy D1 (Place making) of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 indicates that 
developments should incorporate a high standard of design. 
 
4.6 The proposal relates to the construction of a brick built electricity sub-station 
measuring approximately 4 metres square and approximately 2.5 metres in height. It 
would incorporate a flat roof and be constructed of buff coloured facing bricks to 
match the proposed “Centre of Excellence” building. It would be located to the east 
of the proposed Centre of Excellence from which it would be separated by a rear 
access path to the adjoining Hob Moor School. Beyond the access path there is a 
block of garages and a residents' parking area together with a residential bungalow. 
The building is modest in scale and utilitarian in design. It would adopt a palette of 
materials characteristic to the surrounding area and would be integrated into the 
landscaping associated with the proposed Centre of Excellence. Concerns have 
been raised in respect of the possible creation of a dark area adjacent to the school 
access path and a consequent impact on the safety of children using the path. 
However, given the modest dimensions of the building (4 metres in length and width 
and 2.5 metres in height) it is not considered that it would have an unduly 
overbearing presence or detrimental impact on the use of the footpath.  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 4 of 6 

IMPACT UPON ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR IN THE LOCALITY 
 
4.7 Central Government guidance as outlined in paragraph 91 of the NPPF indicates 
that planning decisions should aim to achieve healthy, safe ad inclusive places 
which are safe and accessible and where crime and disorder do not undermine 
community cohesion. Policy HW7 of the Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 
indicates that new developments should povide networks of paths that are safe and 
easy to navigate. 
 
4.8 Concern has been expressed that the proposed substation, by virtue of its flat 
roof design and location adjacent to an access path and an area of residential 
garages within a backland site, may become a focus for anti-social behaviour. It is, 
however, clearly within the defined curtilage of the Centre of Excellence and 
intervisible with it and as such any issue of anti-social behaviour could be reduced 
as part of the management and day-to-day operation of the Centre. The issue can 
be further addressed by a condition requiring further detailed measures to be 
submitted as part of any planning permission. 
 
NOISE 
 
4.9  Concern has also been raised in relation to the possibility of noise from the sub-
station impacting on nearby residents. At the request of the Council`s Public 
Protection Officer, further information has been submitted in relation to the likely 
noise levels of the noise emanating from the substation. Having assessed this 
information, the Public Protection Officer has recommended a condition requiring a 
further noise assessment to be carried out on completion of the development to 
demonstrate that the noise levels from the substation do not increase background 
noise levels across all frequencies, with appropriate mitigation measures to be 
incorporated if required.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
The need for an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is set out in the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. Both this 
proposal and the associated Centre of Excellence constitutes a form of urban 
development falling within Schedule 2 of the Regulations. The minimum threshold in 
respect of urban developments which would trigger the need for an EIA outlined in 
the schedule is where the area of the development exceeds 1 hectare.  The 
proposed development, either singly or in combination with the adjacent Centre of 
Excellence, falls significantly below this threshold and as such an Environmental 
Impact Assessment is not required. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 5 of 6 

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 In December 2018 planning permission was granted for the erection of a part 
single storey part two storey centre for disabled children and their families following 
the demolition of existing care home (Ref: 18/01467/GRG). Planning permission is 
now sought for the erection of a brick built electricity sub-station with associated 
parking in order to service the Centre of Excellence proposal. The proposal is 
modest in scale and would not give rise to any material harm to the visual amenity of 
the wider street scene. At the same time any environmental impacts or risk of anti-
social behaviour can be mitigated by planning conditions attached to any planning 
permission. For these reasons the proposal is considered to be acceptable in 
planning terms and approval is recommended. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans:- 
 
Drawing Refs:- YSB-GDA-VI-ZZ-DR-A-90_20-0005_PO1_;  
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings 
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the construction of the 
development beyond foundation level.  The development shall be carried out using 
the approved materials. 
 
Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if 
sample materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it 
clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be available for 
inspection and where they are located.  
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
4  Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on 
the premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the 
local planning authority for approval on completion of the works. These details shall 
include average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed 

Page 7



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02177/FUL  Item No:  
Page 6 of 6 

noise mitigation measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any approved 
noise mitigation measures shall be fully implemented and operational before the 
proposed use becomes operational and shall be appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities 
of the area. 
 
5  Prior to the construction of the building beyond foundation level full details of 
all security measures in respect of the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thenceforth be 
undertaken in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the development 
being first brought into use and maintained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To deter anti-social behaviour within the site and to secure compliance with 
Policy HW7 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL`S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH 
 
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the 
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) 
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.  
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive 
outcome: 
 
Sought clarification in respect of noise and emf emissions in respect of the scheme. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Erik Matthews Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551416 
 

Page 8



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Economy & Place

City of York Council

Site Location Plan

28 December 2018

1:1202

18/02177/FUL

Land adj to Windsor House, 22 Ascot Way, YO24 4QZ

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 1 of 11 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 10 January 2019 Ward: Osbaldwick And Derwent 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: Kexby Parish Council 

 
Reference:  18/02103/FUL 
Application at:  The Limefields Scoreby Lane Scoreby York YO41 1NR 
For:  Conversion of former agricultural building to a dwelling 
By:  Mr Ben Smith 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date:  15 January 2019 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application relates to the conversion of a former “roll top” agricultural barn 
and lean-to extension to a dwelling. The application site is located within the area of 
Scoreby approximately 8 miles east of York along a narrow single lane road but in 
close proximity to a small number of existing residential properties. The site lies 
within the general extent of the Green Belt. The building to which the application 
relates is used for storage in connection with the applicants landscaping business. 
The conversion would take place within the general fabric of the existing building 
and would create four bedrooms on the ground floor with open plan living to the first 
floor. An internal courtyard would be provided and the existing footprint of the 
building would not be enlarged. 
 
1.2 The application has been called in by Cllr Mark Warters for the following 
reasons: 
 

 The Green Belt location 

 The unique access arrangements leading to concerns regarding neighbour 
amenity  

 Concerns over potential overlooking 

 The potential loss of an existing agricultural/horticultural storage facility 
inevitably leading to pressure for replacement buildings 

 The unusual internal layout certainly for a 'family home' 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 
2.2 Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (Saved Policies) 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 3b



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 2 of 11 

2.3 Publication Draft Local Plan (2018) 
 
Policy D1  Placemaking 
Policy SS2   The Role of York's Green Belt 
Policy GB1  Development in the Green Belt 
Policy GB3  Reuse of Building 
Policy D2  Landscape and Setting 
 
2.4 Development Control Local Plan (2005) 
 
CYGP1 Design 
CYGB1 Development within the Green Belt 
CYGB3 Reuse of buildings 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Public Protection 
 
3.1 The proposed use as residential is similar to the surrounding uses and therefore 
there is unlikely to be any adverse noise impacts as a result of this proposed use. 
 
3.2 The screening assessment form identifies that the barn does not currently have 
a contaminative use and, historically, no fuels have been stored on site. The 
information advises that there have been no known pollution incidents and there 
have been no known waste disposal activities on site or within 250m of the site. The 
roof of the lean-to is believed to be constructed of asbestos and the form identifies 
that this will be removed by an approved contractor as part of the development 
works. Therefore no contaminated land conditions are required. 
 
3.3 A condition should be attached in connection with vehicle recharging facilities. 
 
Countryside and Ecology 
 
3.4 No bat survey is required as single skinned metal buildings are not normally 
favoured by bats. 
 
Highway Network Management 
 
3.5 No objection to the proposed scheme. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 3 of 11 

Rights of Way - Definitive Map Officer 
 
3.6 The public footpath runs to the south of the proposed conversion and is 
approximately 10ft wide. However, the parking arrangements to the front of the 
garage would not impact upon this right of way. This may need to be revisited if 
complaints are received but it appears that the overwhelming majority of the public 
use the Sustrans route to the north of the barn. 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
Kexby Parish Council 
 
3.7 Strongly object on the following grounds: 
 

 The structural frame may not be 'fit for purpose' and the works involve a new 
insulated roof, wall cladding, new insulated floor, windows and doors 

 Would be replacing the barn with almost an entirely different structure 

 Proposed design is not in keeping with the rural countryside location 

 Loss of privacy to neighbours 

 Route 66 and farm machinery have right of way through the middle of and 
along the side of this development 

 The road to and from the site is a single track 

 The applicant has a holiday let business and it is considered that this may 
eventually be a holiday let 

 
Neighbour Notification and Publicity 
 
3.8 Ten objections received on the following grounds: 
 

 The conversion will be for a holiday let 

 The proposed layout is not practical as a family dwelling due to the main living 
accommodation on the first floor 

 The holiday let could accommodate four couples with four cars increasing 
traffic along the quiet road 

 Increased traffic would compromise the safety of the cycle route and bridleway 

 Four cars parked outside of the barn would be an eyesore 

 Construction traffic would be a disruption 

 The conversion would be out of character and spoil views of the countryside 

 The design is very urban in nature 

 The inside space will be very dark 

 Overlooking of Limefields Farm 

 Inadequate drainage facilities 

 External amenity space is too small for a four bedroom property 

Page 13



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 4 of 11 

 Potential for additional noise from guests 

 The first floor side window would overlook the bridleway 

 Limefield Farm will be overlooked by the first floor windows and the main 
access 

 The large double height window to the south elevation may result in a loss of 
privacy depending how the louvers are fixed 

 The access is partly public, becomes a bridle way and Sustrans route and a 
private road owned by The Church Commissioners 

 The access is narrow and requires cars to pull in to allow oncoming vehicles to 
pass 

 Residents may try and access the A1079 via the alternative private road 

 Direct access is through Limefield Farm 

 Vehicular access is close to Lime Field Farm where children play out 

 Potential conflict with cyclist, walkers, horse riders and the additional traffic 

 Where will the equipment which is stored within the building go 

 Inadequate drainage 
 
3.9  Five supporting comments: 
 

 The conversion is the final element of Limefields Farm building to be 
converted 

 The building is beginning to look a little dilapidated 

 The footprint would remain as existing  

 It remains in character with the area 

 Creation of homes is a society and government priority 

 There is no reference to Holiday Let in any of the supporting information only a 
family home 

 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues 
 

 Acceptability within the Green Belt 

 Visual impact 

 Highway implications 

 Amenity 

 Drainage 
 
4.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004 requires 
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. There is no statutory development plan for York 
other than the Poppleton and Rufforth Neighbourhood Plans and the retained 
policies in the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy ("RSS"), saved 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 5 of 11 

under the Regional Strategy for Yorkshire and Humber (Partial Revocation) Order 
2013. These policies, YH9(C) and Y1(C1 and C2), relate to York's Green Belt and 
the key diagram, Figure 6.2, insofar as it illustrates the general extent of the Green 
Belt around York with an outer boundary about 6 miles from the City Centre. The 
application site falls within the general extent of the Green Belt as shown on the Key 
Diagram of the RSS. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
4.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in July 2018. It 
sets out government's planning policies and is material to the determination of 
planning applications. The NPPF is the most up-to-date representation of key 
relevant policy issues (other than the saved RSS Policies relating to the general 
extent of the York Green Belt) and it is against this policy Framework that the 
proposal should principally be addressed. 
 
4.4 Paragraph 38 advises that local planning authorities should approach decisions 
on proposed development in a positive and creative way and work proactively with 
applicants to secure developments that will improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every level should seek to 
approve applications for sustainable development where possible.  
 
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 
 
4.5 The Publication Draft Local Plan ('2018 Draft Plan') was submitted for 
examination on 25 May 2018. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the 
Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according to: 
 

 The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); 

 The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the 
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be 
given); and  

 The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under 
transitional arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 
2019 will be assessed against the 2012 NPPF).   

 
The evidence base underpinning the 2018 Draft Plan is capable of being a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. Policies D1 
'Placemaking', SS2 'The Role of York's Green Belt', GB1 'Development in the Green 
Belt', GB3 'Reuse of Building' and D2 'Landscape and Setting' are all relevant to 
consideration of this application. 
 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 6 of 11 

Policy GB1: Development in the Green Belt 
 
4.6 The relevant policy is Policy GB1: Development in the Green Belt which states 
that within the Green Belt, planning permission for development will only be granted 
where: 
 
i. the scale, location and design of development would not detract from the 
openness of the Green Belt; 
ii. it would not conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Belt; and 
iii. it would not prejudice or harm those elements which contribute to the special 
character and setting of York 
 
AND it is for one of the acceptable purposes which include buildings for agriculture 
and forestry, appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, 
extension or alteration to existing buildings, replacement buildings, limited infilling in 
villages and limited affordable housing. All other forms of development within the 
Green Belt are considered inappropriate. Very special circumstances will be 
required to justify instances where this presumption against development should not 
apply. 
 
4.7 Policy GB3 states that outside defined settlement limits planning permission for 
the reuse of buildings within the Green Belt will be granted provided: 
 
i. the reuse does not have a materially greater impact than the present use on the 
openness of the Green Belt; and 
ii. the buildings are of permanent and substantial construction and are capable of 
conversion without major or complete reconstruction; and 
iii. the proposed reuse will generally take place within the fabric of the existing 
building and will not require extensive alteration, rebuilding or extension; and 
iv. the form, bulk and general design of the buildings are in keeping with their 
surroundings and sympathetic to the character of the building; and 
v. any residential buildings are not in close proximity to intensive livestock units or 
other uses that may result in a poor level of amenity for the occupier of the building; 
and 
vi. there is already a clearly defined curtilage; and 
vii. where the proposal involves changing the use to residential, permission will only 
be granted where criteria i. to vi. are satisfied; and the building(s) are within 800m of 
a defined settlement limit. 
 
4.8 Policy D1 'Placemaking' of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 states that 
development proposals should enhance and complement the character and 
appearance of the landscape and D2 'Landscape and Setting' which states that 
proposals should conserve and enhance landscape quality and character, the 
public's experience of it and make a positive contribution to York's special qualities. 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 7 of 11 

Development Control Local Plan (Approved April 2005) (DCLP) 
 
4.9 The Development Control Local Plan was approved for development 
management purposes in April 2005 (DCLP). Whilst the DCLP does not form part of 
the statutory development plan, its policies are considered to be capable of being 
material considerations in the determination of planning applications where policies 
relevant to the application are consistent with those in the NPPF (2018).  
 
410 Policy GB1 'Development in the Green Belt', GB3 'Reuse of Buildings', SP2 
'The York Green Belt' and GP1 'Design' are relevant although the weight that can be 
afforded to them is very limited. 
 
OPENNESS AND PURPOSE OF THE GREENBELT 
 
4.11 The site is located within the general extent of the York Green Belt as 
described in the RSS. In the emerging Local Plan and DCLP (2005) it is also shown 
as being within the Green Belt. Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that inappropriate 
development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved 
except in very special circumstances. Paragraph 144 goes on to state that when 
considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that 
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special 
circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations.  
 
4.12 The construction of new buildings within the Green belt is inappropriate and 
should be resisted. However, Paragraph 146 states that certain forms of 
development are not inappropriate in the Green Belt provided they preserve its 
openness and do not conflict with the purpose of including land within it. These 
include the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of a permanent and 
substantial construction. 
 
4.13 The application site comprises of a roll top barn with attached lean-to located in 
the area of Scoreby, approximately 8 miles East of York. The barn backs onto The 
Limefields, a residential property within the same ownership, with the remaining 
aspects facing the vehicular access to the site and open countryside. The 
conversion would provide four en-suite bedrooms and an enclosed courtyard at the 
ground floor and an open plan kitchen and living area to the first floor, in order to 
utilise the views over the adjacent countryside. High level glazing is proposed to the 
rear elevation, facing The Limefields, with large expanses of glazing to the northern 
elevation facing the internal courtyard and open countryside beyond. The barn 
would be finished in a low level of existing brick, timber cladding, corrugated 
sheeting walls and a black zinc roof. 
 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 8 of 11 

4.14 The existing building is constructed of a heavy steel frame with steel trussed 
members with a lower section of brickwork supporting corrugated sheeting above. It 
is considered to be in a good state of repair and capable of conversion with the 
existing structure being capable of carrying additional loading for the first floor 
construction. The scheme does not involve any increase in footprint or height and 
the development would not extend beyond the existing elevations of the building. As 
such it is considered that the proposed conversion would preserve the openness of 
the Green Belt. 
 
VISUAL IMPACT 
 
4.15 As the proposal would not result in any increase in footprint or increase in 
height there would only be a limited effect in terms of visual impact. The proposed 
external finish would incorporate elements of timber cladding, black vertical 
corrugated sheeting and a black zinc roof. The appearance of the building would 
change, mainly due to the proposed materials with the proposed black finish being 
in contrast with the existing grey cladding. However, when the barn approached 
along the access road it is seen in context with the existing buildings and a domestic 
boundary wall leading to The Limefields. In addition the barn is located within an 
area of mature trees which from more distant views would partially screen the 
development and reduce its prominence.  
 
4.16 The majority of the glazing is proposed to the newly created internal courtyard 
and to the first floor facing the courtyard. To the exterior of the building a horizontal 
band of high level glazing at first floor is proposed along with four vertical slit 
windows to the rear elevation, glazing either side of the door and glazing to a small 
first floor terrace area to the side. Due to the limited number of these openings, the 
building would retain the feel of an agricultural structure within this rural location and 
as such would not appear out of place within the landscape. 
 
HIGHWAY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.17 Paragraph 109 of The NPPF 2018 states that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact 
upon highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would 
be severe. The application site is located within a remote area some distance off the 
adopted highway network. Immediately to the north of the site lies a Sustrans cycle 
route and immediately to the south lies a public bridleway/footpath.  
 
4.18 Concerns have been expressed that the conversion would have a detrimental 
impact upon the rights of way around the building. As there will be no increase in the 
footprint of the building the only impact could be in terms of vehicular parking and 
vehicular access. The plans indicate two car parking spaces within the adjacent 
garage and two in front. When assessing the bridleway and public footpath it is clear 
that the spaces would not interfere with the ability of the public to pass and repass. 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 9 of 11 

Cycle storage has been identified as being located within the existing large garage 
which is considered to be acceptable. 
 
4.19 It is noted that the development is located a distance from the adopted highway 
network. However, Paragraph 79 of the NPPF states that 'Planning policies and 
decisions should avoid the development of isolated homes in the countryside unless 
one or more of the following circumstances apply, one of these being that the 
development would re-use redundant or disused buildings and enhance its 
immediate setting. As such the isolated location of the dwelling should not be reason 
for refusal. 
 
4.20 Concerns have been expressed that the proposed access is along single lane 
tracks that are maintained by local residents, including the applicant, and The 
Church Commission and that there is the potential for conflict with vehicles and farm 
machinery. However, it is not considered that the formation of a single four bedroom 
dwelling would be likely to increase vehicular movements to a level that would result 
in a danger to highway users. Access along the lanes is a private legal matter but 
the applicant has confirmed that there is a legal right of access over this land which 
would pass onto any successors in title deeds. 
 
AMENITY 
 
4.20 Concerns have been raised that the windows in the conversion would result in 
a loss of privacy for the occupiers of Limefield Farm. The plans indicate openings to 
the ground floor to the rear elevation and to the door to the side of the property. High 
level glazing is proposed to the first floor corridor but this is located above head 
height. A double height window is proposed to the rear elevation, opening into the 
double height hallway and staircase, to allow light into the building. This would be 
located behind a “brise soleil”, which is a series or horizontal bars angled to allow 
light in but to prevent any views from the building. Furthermore, Limefield Farm is 
located approximately 27m away from the nearest point of the conversion. 
 
DRAINAGE 
 
4.21 Due to the isolated location of the site there are no foul or surface water sewers 
within the vicinity. The barn is in a good state of repair and surface water from the 
building currently flows into an existing large silt trap chamber which has an existing 
piped outfall connecting into the existing field drainage system. The proposed 
development will not increase the existing impermeable areas on the site. The 
application proposal includes the removal of part of the roof to include a courtyard 
garden area within the curtilage of the existing building footprint, which will reduce 
the effective drained area. It is proposed to use the existing surface water drainage 
system. 
 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 10 of 11 

4.22 There is no existing foul water drainage available to serve the site. The 
adjacent residential properties have their own private treatment plant systems that 
are maintained by the respective owners. It is proposed that a new appropriately 
sized and detailed effluent treatment plant will be installed adjacent to the existing 
building to serve the proposed residential use of the converted barn. The final 
effluent from the treatment plant will connect into and discharge to the existing 
surface water drainage system. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The conversion of the building would not have any detrimental impact upon the 
character of the area, on residential amenity or upon the openness of the Green 
Belt. As such the application accords with the NPPF 20018 paragraphs 143 to 145, 
policy GB1 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 and policies GB1, GB3 and GP1 
of the Development Control Local Plan 2005. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
Drawing number LT 07 Rev A dated 18th October 2018 
Site Layout Plan YTA005SP 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 
4  HWAY19  Car and cycle parking laid out  
 
5  EPU1  Electricity socket for vehicles  
 
 6  Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting 
that Order), development of the type described in Classes B and C of Schedule 2 
Part 1 of that Order shall not be erected or constructed. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the adjoining residents the Local 
Planning Authority considers that it should exercise control over any future 
extensions or alterations which, without this condition, may have been carried out as 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 18/02103/FUL  Item No:  
Page 11 of 11 

"permitted development" under the above classes of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015. 
 
 7  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that 
Order), no door, window or other opening additional to those shown on the approved 
plans shall at any time be inserted in the side or rear elevations of the property. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of occupants of adjacent residential 
properties. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
1.  STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL`S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE 
APPROACH 
 
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the 
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) 
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.  
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive 
outcome: 
 
Sought additional information in connection with the site drainage, access and 
design 
 
2. RIGHTS OF WAY 

 
The adjacent Public Right of Way to the south and National Cycle Route to the north 
shall at no point be blocked or affected by the proposed works without prior written 
approval of the authority's Public Rights of Way Team. Contact: 
publicrightsofway@york.gov.uk 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Heather Fairy Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 552217 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Economy & Place

City of York Council

Site Location Plan

28 December 2018

1:2405

18/02103/FUL

The Limefields, Scoreby Lane, Scoreby, YO41 1NR

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

18/02103/FUL 
 
The Limefields, Scoreby Lane, Scoreby, YO41 1NR 

 

 

Organisation City of York Council 

Department Economy & Place 

Comments Site Location Plan 

Date 28 December 2018 

 

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission 
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright 2000. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Sub-Committee Site Visit Schedule
	3a Windsor House, 22 Ascot Way, York, YO24 4QZ [18/02177/FUL]
	Adjacent Windsor House, 22 Ascot Way - 18-02177-FUL

	3b The Limefields, Scoreby Lane, Scoreby, York, YO41 1NR [18/02103/FUL]
	The Limefields, Scoreby Lane 18-02103-FUL
	The Limefields (2), Scoreby Lane 18-02103-FUL


